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1. CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT 
It is indeed a humbling experience to provide an 

account of the activities of the Ugu South Coast 

Development Agency (USCDA) for the period 

commencing 01 July 2018 and ending on 30 June 

2019. As the name implies an entity is a subsidiary 

of a parent or holding company and in this case 

USCDA is wholly owned by the Ugu District 

Municipality. Simply put the efficiency of the entity 

as mandated by the parent is to implement tangible 

interventions accelerating participation of the 

majority of our residents into the mainstream of the 

economy. It needs to be borne in mind that the area 

still depicts a 2-world syndrome wherein the 

developed coastal belt exhibits 1st world standards 

typical of Europe, Canada and Australia. It is the 

area of concentration of prime real estate, well 

developed infrastructure and top end retail 

facilities, to mention a few. On the other hand, the 

interior is characterized by massive poverty for the 

majority of residents with mainly unplanned 

residential settlements with primary agriculture 

being the main economic activity. However, there 

are isolated pockets of economic activity as 

evidenced by large estates of commercial 

agriculture as well as pristine inland tourism 

products. It is no wonder then that the 

interventions need an out of -the box philosophy as 

resources at our disposal are incongruent with the 

complexities at hand.   

A note of gratitude goes to my fellow colleagues, 

the non-executive directors, who displayed a great 

deal of resilience in shaping the direction of the 

entity towards focussed interventions. The 

strategic planning session that was held during the 

period under review identified the need for striking 

meaningful and mutually beneficial partnerships 

with strategic stakeholder. The hard reality is that 

the current economic climate has put a strain on 

the ability of the consumers to pay for utilities 

consumed and this had a debilitating effect on the 

entity.  Ugu’s finances were adversely affected by 

the non-payment and this has had a ripple effect on 

the entity. My colleagues gave the CEO and general 

staff an unequivocal mandate to make things 

happen against all odds, embracing the principle of 

doing more with less. For this reason, the Board 

adopted five key focus areas as the backbone of the 

strategic thrust of the entity: 

• Property Development, focussing on 

both the coastal strip as well as the inland 

areas 

• Agrarian Transformation and Value 

Addition 

• Small Business Empowerment 

• Investment Attraction and Marketing 

• Inland Tourism Product Development.  

In relation to the implementation of each of these 

spend time and interact with our report. Your 

constructive input will be highly appreciated as it is 

only through unbiassed constructive criticism that 

we can sharpen our spear going forward. As agents 

for change in the economic development space 

confronted with the daunting task of broadening 

participation by all in economic activities, I wish to 

conclude by quoting the famous Maya Angelou –  

“if you do not like something change it, if you 

cannot change it, change your attitude.   

The traumatic scenes of witnessing young people 

lining traffic intersections looking for work and at 

times mothers with their kids begging for food, all 

depict the need to change our attitudes as we 

tackle the triple challenges of unemployment, 

poverty and inequality. The daunting task to make 

meaningful impact on the people’s lives requires all 

hands-on deck as economic development is a 

collective responsibility.  We serve as catalyst 

spearheading change for inclusive economic 

growth within Ugu and the details in the report 

provide an account of work done in this regard.  

 

_____________________ 

Dr Sipho Nzimande 

Chairperson 
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2. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 

Compiling an annual report is a legislative 

requirement that serves as an umbilical 

cord linking the communities served with 

the Ugu South Coast Development Agency, 

a special purpose economic development 

entity, whose core mandate is the 

implementation of high impact 

interventions to give true meaning to the 

improvement of the quality of life of Ugu 

people. As its administrative head, I hereby 

account for the activities undertaken 

during the period under review mainly to 

outline success stories but most 

importantly an analysis of the challenges 

experienced, together with possible 

solutions thereof.  

Limited resources at our disposal call for 

prudent financial management and in this 

regard the Board opted to adopt cost 

containment measures aimed at 

minimizing the nice to haves and rather 

allocate more resources for the execution 

of the core mandate. Facilitating the 

creation of sustainable jobs as well as 

growing the local economy for the benefit 

of all remains the mantra that binds the 

entity with the community it serves.   

The narrative presented above indicates 

the entity’s efforts to navigate the delicate 

stages of infancy towards maturity. 

Successes recorded have been achieved 

with minimal financial resources as the 

only funding available for projects was for 

the National Schools Nutrition as well as 

Kwa Xolo Caves Eco- Adventure Centre. It 

stands to reason then that the bulk of our 

activities focussed on forging strategic 

partnerships with the private sector as well 

as government for a coordinated approach 

and pooling of resources towards the 

challenging path of radical economic 

transformation. 

On the whole, a submission is hereby made 

that with funding and better coordination, 

more can be done in assaulting the triple 

challenges of poverty, joblessness and 

inequality that are so rife in our district. 

We remain resolute in our determination 

to be change agents in broadening the 

economic benefits of our area to all who 

live within it and the challenges of limited 

financial resources keep us on our toes.  

The volume of pipeline projects that have 

been initiated during the period under 

review gives comfort that on an 

incremental basis the noble objective of 

shared economic growth in our district will 

be achieved.   

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

MANDLA MABECE 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
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3. THE AUDIT COMMITTEE’S REPORT 
Members of the Audit Committee: 

Mrs. Chantel Elliott  – Member 

Mr. Bheki Dladla  – Member until 31 

October 2018 

Mrs. Bongeka Jojo  – Member 

Mr. Paul Preston  –  Chairperson 

Mr. Zwili Zulu       – Member from 1 

November 2018 

1. INTRODUCTION 

South Coast Development Agency is a Municipal 

Entity created in terms of the Municipal Systems 

Act and aligned to the Companies Act of 2008.   The 

Chief Executive Officer is the Accounting Officer and 

is responsible for managing the financial 

administration of the Municipal Entity.  The Entity 

answers to its own Board of Directors. The Audit 

Committee is appointed in terms of Municipal 

Legislation by the UGU District, to assist and to 

advise the CEO, the Political Leadership and the 

Chairperson of the Board of Directors of the Entity.  

It is afforded wide powers and obligations to advise 

the Directors and UGU District Municipality (UGU) 

in terms of Section 166 read with Section 87 of the 

Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) read 

with the Companies Act.  It’s Annual Financial 

Statements and performance is consolidated with 

those of UGU.  This report documents the External 

Audit Committee sitting as a shared service for the 

Entity on behalf of UGU for the 2018/2019 financial 

year. 

The Audit Committee sat on the following dates as 

an Audit Committee and as a Performance Audit 

Committee: - 

AUDIT COMMITTEE and PERFORMANCE AUDIT 

COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

• 21 August 2018 

• 28 August 2018 

• 14 December 2018 

• 25 March 2019 

• 14 June 2019 

2.  MEMBERS AND MEETINGS OF THE AUDIT 

COMMITTEE 

In terms of the MFMA and the South Coast 

Development Agency (SCDA) Audit Committee 

Charter, the Audit Committee as at the 30 June 

2019, included four external independent 

members, one is a Performance Audit Specialist. 

None of the members were Directors of the Entity 

or Company. The membership composition of the 

Audit Committee does not include the Accounting 

Officer/Acting CEO. The Audit Committee met four 

(4) times during the year, as per its approved 

Charter and four (4) times in the year as a 

Performance Audit Committee to discharge its 

responsibilities. 

Discussions of an informal nature with the 

Chairperson, the CEO, and the Municipal Manager 

of UGU District Municipality took place from time 

to time. These meetings included ongoing 

assessment of statutory compliance, calibrations of 

risk in respect of the Entity and always considered 

the Entity’s financial position.   

The Audit Committee also sat as a Performance 

Audit Committee for performance audits in respect 

of Section 40, 41, 43 and 46 of the Municipal 

Systems Act (MSA) to consider pre-determined 

objectives, and the IDP and SDBIP of the Parent.  

Directors of the Entity, unless specifically invited, 

are excluded from meetings but the Chair of the 

Board is invited to all Audit Meetings.  They have 

Board meetings at which a member of the Audit 

Committee is an invitee.  The Audit Committee 

maintains its independence at all times. Members 

feel comfortable in discussing issues, questioning 

management as well as referring to Treasury 

Circulars, COGTA and the Auditor General (who are 

standard invitees to all meetings), for comment and 

advice, and to initiating discussions with adequate 

opportunity to consider: - 

1. Compliance with legislation; 

2. Completeness and Accuracy of Financial 

Statements;  

3. Performance evaluation of the Entity in 

accordance with its own planning and in 

terms of predetermined Performance 



 

 

 
7 

USCDA Annual Report 2019/20 

Targets in terms of the 2001 Statutory 

Performance Regulations; and  

4. The Entities financial position and its going 

concern viability; 

5. The Entities alignment with the IDP of the 

Parent;   

6. mSCOA preparedness; 

7. Loans received by the Entity or Property 

and Projects;  

8. Compliance with Treasury Circulars 68 

concerning irregular expenditure and 

deviations and unauthorised or fruitless 

and wasteful expenditure. 

9. Supply Chain Management and the 

supplier data bases. 

10. The function set at clause 3.1 below.  

 

Audit Committee members respect and maintain 

the confidentiality of meetings and the agendas. 

Audit Committee members have carefully reviewed 

and approved its meeting minutes to ensure they 

captured the essence of issues and discussion. 

Audit Committee members exchanged e-mails with 

the Acting Chief Executive Officer and the Audit 

Chairperson between meetings if issues or concerns 

arose.  An atmosphere of mutual trust and respect 

exists between the Audit Committee and 

Management while maintaining a spirit of 

independence and a willingness to challenge 

submissions and reports tabled at meetings.  

Careful interrogation of compliance with Treasury 

circulars and the necessary Registers took place at 

meetings during the second part of the year.  During 

the year concerning this Report the Registers were 

not well maintained, nor was the financial 

accounting attended to in a satisfactory manner. 

The Audit Committee meetings expressed 

confidence in the CFO at the meetings and the 

direct remedial action concerning reports and the 

work presented to the Audit Committee has 

improved materially after the appointment of the 

competent CFO.   

3.  AUDIT COMMITTEE’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

AND FINDINGS 

The Audit Committee noted the CEO’s Performance 

Management Plan and Strategic Plan during the 

financial year and the mid-year adjustments, and 

aligned it at Performance Audit Meetings. 

The Audit Committee’s responsibilities are outlined 

in Section 166(2) read with Section 87 of the MFMA 

where the legislation applies to Entities.  The 

Internal and External Audit Committee Charters 

were reviewed by the Audit Committee and 

recommendations were made to enhance the 

independence of the Audit Committee in line with 

Corporate Governance, as well as Statutory 

compliance in terms of the provisions of the 

Companies Act 71 of 2008.   In discharging its 

responsibilities for the year ended 30 June 2019 the 

Audit Committee completed the following: -  

3.1  Audit Committee Meetings 

• Reviewed the quality of the financial 

information, financial statements and 

other statutory/public and regulatory 

reporting that was tabled before the Audit 

Committee; 

• Reviewed the draft Annual Financial 

Statements and the Parent’s Consolidated 

Financial Statements and the draft 

performance audit information and 

consolidated performance prior to 

submission to the Directors of South Coast 

Development Agency and then submitted 

to the Auditor-General and made 

recommendations on enhancing the 

quality of disclosure; 

• Reviewed the draft annual financial 

statements and performance information 

to ensure they present a balanced credible 

and understandable assessment of the 

position, performance and sustainability 

of the Entity; 

• Reviewed the Auditor General’s proposed 

audit and management report in relation 

to the year ended 2017 and considered 

any necessary corrective action; 

• Discussed outcomes and possible 

reservations arising from the audit, and 

any matters the A.G. wished to discuss; 

• Reviewed the Auditor General’s 

management letter and its engagement 

letter and management response with 

regard to the corrective action (if any) to 
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be undertaken in response to significant 

internal audit findings; 

• Identified key matters arising in the prior 

year’s management letter and satisfied 

itself that they were being properly 

followed up; 

• Reviewed the Foundation documents 

which establishes the Entity in terms of 

relevant legislation as well as compliance 

with legislation; 

• Reviewed the Entities business plan and 

detailed Performance Management Plan 

and mid-year Performance review. 

• mSCOA preparedness  

• Established incidents of limitation of the 

Audit Committee’s scope 

• Considered the Entities Loans and Projects 

• Enquired about projects and development 

by the Agency and expressed certain 

concerns.  

• Was informed of the pending 

implementations of a School Nutrition 

Feeding Scheme to be managed by the 

Entity in future.  

 

3.2  Performance Management 

The Audit Committee, sitting as a Performance 

Audit Committee, considered matters relating to 

performance management in order to discharge 

the responsibilities prescribed in terms of 

Regulation 14(4) of the Local Government: 

Municipal Planning and Performance Management 

Regulations, 2001. 

These responsibilities included: 

• A review of the quarterly reports and mid-

year performance review submitted by 

internal audit. 

• Planning and Performance Management 

Regulations. 

• Reviewed the performance management 

portfolios of evidence and testing the 

functionality thereof and compliance with 

the Municipal Systems Act and the MFMA. 

• Focussed on factors applicable to the 

Entity’s own key performance indicators. 

• Considered the application of Sections 40, 

41, 43 and 46 of the MSA, with reference 

to the I.D.P. of the parent municipality 

(UGU) the SDBIP and the challenges and 

solutions of the Entity in this regard and 

reviewed same prior to submission to the 

Board and the Auditor General. 

• Established that there has been a 

regression in levels of legislative 

compliance and performance related 

financial disclosure by the Entity in 

conjunction with compliance with Sections 

40, 41, 43 and 46 of the Local Government:  

Municipal Systems Act in that the 

reporting has been found to be 

inconsistent with the objectives, indicators 

and targets in the approved Annual 

Performance Plan.  

• Performance Management in the 3rd and 

4th Quarters and the mid-year 

Performance review has provided credible 

information indicating and not given 

assurance that Performance 

Management, legislative compliance and 

the Supply Chain Management 

Regulations are receiving purposeful 

attention.   

• The Audit Committee is concerned as the 

Entity is dependent on UGU a District 

Municipality for the services of an Internal 

Auditor for the financial year, and for 

much of its funding.   

• Considered Tax Compliance Certificate and 

compliance by service providers on the 

Entities supplier data base.  

 

3.3 The CEO 

The CEO continued to manage the Agency within 

the context of his experience and knowledge as a 

Municipal Manager, under sometimes difficult 

circumstances. The audit outcome and operational 

harmony which exists in the Agency is a credit to the 

CEO. There were periods that the parent was 

unable to meet its commitment to the Agency and 

he dealt with these difficulties purposefully and 

with the necessary restraint that was needed at the 

time.  
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3.4 Leadership 

3.4.1 In Financial Management the Entity 

has improved, noting that given the 

nature of Development that supply 

chain requirements are always a 

challenge.  There were some issues 

raised by the Auditor General for the 

year concerned arising from 

irregular expenditure and important 

findings on Annexure “A”. 

3.4.2 There were certain areas which the 

Entity must give special attention to, 

the area of statutory compliance 

with Supply Chain Management 

Regulations, and its own pre-

determined objectives and how they 

are managed.  

3.4.3 The Entity has since the 

appointment of the CFO performed 

satisfactorily in compliance with 

Treasury Circulars and in 

maintaining the registers concerning 

Irregular Expenditure and supply 

chain deviations in terms of Section 

36 of SCM Regulations were 

continuously done in an acceptable 

format.  Much attention and 

assistance was given in these areas 

by both the Audit Committee and in 

particular, by the A.G. at meetings. 

3.4.4 The Auditor General for Quarter 3 

and Quarter 4, in its Dashboard 

Reports, found that the Entity has 

created some measures to improve 

its performance and its evaluation of 

its own performance and to manage 

its own performance evaluation and 

to create Portfolios of Evidence. 

3.4.5 This resulted in an Unqualified Audit 

Report with other important matter 

on Annexure “A” but with other 

important matters which is 

satisfactory.  

 

3.5 Internal Control and Internal Audit 

The External Audit Committee is responsible for 

monitoring and advising in respect of the effective 

functioning of the Internal Audit activity.  Internal 

Audit reports functionally to the Audit Committee 

and administratively to the Accounting Officer.  It 

must be mentioned that Ugu’s Internal Audit Unit 

under Ms. Zevile Dlamini and her team provided 

reliable and credible consistent support.  The Audit 

Committee: - 

• has direct access to Internal Audit (of UGU) 

through a reporting relationship thus 

supporting its independence from 

management.  

• via the Chairperson has conducted regular 

private telephone calls and exchanged e-

mails, and meetings with the Internal 

Auditor and the UGU Municipal Manager, to 

allow for frank discussion of issues and 

concerns.  

• evaluated the performance of internal audit 

and the independence and effectiveness of 

the internal auditors.  

• understands the scope of internal and 

external auditor's review of internal control 

over financial reporting, and obtained 

reports on significant findings and 

recommendations, together with 

management's responses.  

• evaluated controls over the overall 

operational and financial reporting 

environment and reviewed the effectiveness 

of the internal controls.   

• assessed the adequacy of performance of 

the internal audit function, and the 

adequacy of available internal audit 

resources, and expressed concerns from 

time to time.  

• reviewed the adequacy and frequency of 

corrective action attended to in response to 

certain Auditor General’s findings raised in 

the prior year.  

• reviewed and approved the Internal Audit 

Charter, Internal Audit Plans and Internal 

Audit's findings with regard to internal 

controls.  

• discussed matters with respect to risk 

assessment, fraud risk assessment and asset 

management. 

• discussed at length the challenges in 

performance management. 
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• consistently reviewed Supply Chain 

Management and the obtaining of 

declarations from service providers 

contracting with the Entity, that they are not 

in the service of the State, and that they are 

properly registered on the Entities data-

base. 

• Considered mSCOA preparedness  

• Tested irregular expenditure and 

compliance with deviations from the 

procurement process.  

 

3.6  Compliance and Ethics 

From a review of various reports and discussions 

held at Audit Committee meetings the Audit 

Committee noted that a Fraud Prevention Strategy 

was in place and a code of conduct for 

Development Agency personnel in terms of the 

Municipal Systems Act is applied by the Entity. The 

Audit Committee is satisfied that it has complied 

with its responsibilities.  It has reviewed the 

effectiveness of mechanisms for the identification 

and reporting of compliance with laws as set out in 

the pre-determined Internal Audit Plan and in 

Regulations; and the findings of regulatory bodies, 

the directives of the Board or audit observations. 

The Audit Committee checked the integrity of 

certain grants, and made certain findings. It must be 

stated, however, that fraud is very difficult to detect 

at any level. 

3.7  Section 87 (of the MFMA) Management 

Report 

This is required at each Audit Committee meeting 

from the Chief Financial Officer. It is, if presented 

properly, most helpful in providing a 

contemporaneous indication of the financial health 

and state of the Municipality at any given time.  The 

Audit Committee recommended that monthly 

Section 87 Management reports also be submitted 

to the Directors during the year. 

3.8 The Consideration of the Auditor 

General’s Report 

The Auditor General has tabled its Final 

Management Report and Audit Finding in respect of 

the year under review.  The AG expressed an 

Unqualified opinion but with other matters of 

importance it must be stated that the A.G a Chapter 

9 Institution in terms of South Africa’s Constitution 

has been extremely thorough and strict  in its audit 

process and has afforded little, if any leniency in the 

year under review, so the audit outcome, in context 

is very good.  

3.9 In-year reports submitted in terms of the 

MFMA 

The quarterly performance management reports 

on predetermined objectives and proof of 

portfolios of evidence, all the budget details and 

SDBIP and, Internal Audit reports and the Annual 

Performance Reports have been called for by the 

Audit Committee. The Audit Committee reviewed 

these reports and was satisfied with the content 

and quality of these reports prepared in respect of 

performance management and issued on behalf of 

the Accounting Officer and management during the 

year under review and the minutes of the External 

Audit Committee reflects this. 

3.10  Internal Audit Function 

During the year under review, an audit plan was 

prepared based on inter alia, the Annual Risk 

Assessment. The following is a list of areas of audit 

focus which received Internal Audit and 

Management’s regular attention: 

• Ethics 

• Asset Management Review 

• Bi-annual reviews of Performance 

Management 

• Cash Flow / Going Concern issues 

• Financial Discipline Review 

• Follow Up Review: Revenue Management 

• Information Technology General Controls 

Review 

• Supply Chain Management Discipline  

• AG Findings: A-G Management Report & 

Audit Reports 

• Section 32, Section 36 and 17(1)(c) of 

Supply Chain Management Regulations 

• Annual and Consolidated Annual Financial 

Statements 

• Fraud Prevention 
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• Funding by Local Municipalities and the 

District Municipality  

• Risk Management / Risk Register 

• Performance Management and alignment 

with Parent’s IDP  

• Internal Audit Plan 

• Legislative Compliance 

• Property, Plant and Equipment 

• VAT 

• Compliance with Supply Chain 

Management Regulations 

• GRAP 

• Asset Register 

• Possible misstatement of Assets and in 

Draft Annual Financial Statements and the 

concomitant risk 

• Treasury Circulars and their compliance 

registers 

• Proper treatment of Irregular Expenditure  

• Compliance with Performance Regulations 

of 2001, especially Section 14. 

An annual assessment of the Internal Audit 

Function has been completed the Audit Committee. 

The External Audit Committee is satisfied with the 

performance of the Internal Audit function (a 

shared function with UGU), and reports that all 

projects in terms of the approved risk based annual 

audit plan had been adequately provided to the 

Audit Committee as required by Law.  The plan 

comprising of the approved projects for the 

Financial Year 2018/2019 and its current status is 

reported upon in the Internal Audit Report within 

the Annual Report under the auspices of the Office 

of the CEO.  

4.  EVALUATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS 

The Audit Committee has reviewed the credibility 

of the draft annual financial statements and 

consolidated draft annual financial statements and 

the Municipal Entity’s Performance Management 

for the year ended 30 June 2019 prior to same being 

submitted to the Auditor General on the 31 August 

2019. The Committee reviewed the accounting 

policies and practices and evaluated the draft 

annual financial statements and also the 

consolidated draft annual financial statements 

based on the information provided to the 

Committee and considered the integrity of the said 

statements in complying in all material respects 

with the requirements of the MFMA and Treasury 

Regulations.  The statements (and the risk of 

misstatements were aligned) in respect of 

Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP). 

The Committee will also, in the following financial 

year review and interrogate the audited financial 

statements together with the report of the Auditor 

General and the related management letter and 

Audit finding with management responses and the 

moderate amount of required corrective action for 

the previous financial year.   It will try to provide the 

Entity and its Board with an authoritative and 

credible view of the financial position of the 

municipality, its efficiency and effectiveness on 

overall compliance with the MFMA and any other 

applicable legislation, its performance 

management, and formally notes the favourable 

state of the Entities’ Financial Position. 

5.  RESOLUTIONS 

With reference to Treasury Circulars, the Audit 

Committee Resolved as follows, at its Audit 

Committee meetings for the year in question, the 

AC resolved: - 

1. To deal with necessary Corrective Action in 

terms of Section 131 of the MFMA at every 

meeting.  

2. To deal with Supply Chain Management 

concerns and to check Treasury Registers. 

3. To formally address Performance 

Management. 

4. To follow up with regard to the CEO’s 

Management Plan and Strategic Plan. 

5. To consider South Coast Development 

Agency’s viability as a Going Concern at 

each meeting. 

6. To consideration of Section 87 

Management Reports. 

7. To consider VAT. 

8. To confirm the Audit Committee charters, 

and Internal Audit Plans. 

9. To interrogate the Tender process. 

10. To ensure compliance with Treasury 

Circulars.  
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11. To consider correct treatment of identified 

Irregular Expenditure and Section 36 

Deviations.  

12. To consider mSCOA preparedness.  

13. To test the integrity of grants received.  

 

6.   A.G.’S AUDIT OUTCOME 

The Auditor General has tabled its Final 

Management Report and Audit Finding in respect of 

the year under review.  The Auditor General 

expressed an Unqualified Opinion with certain 

additional matters on Annexure “A”.  

Audit Committee Meetings are attended, for the 

most part, by Members of the Auditor General’s 

staff. They are careful not to become operationally 

involved, but are helpful when questions of 

interpretation are put to them.  

This is supplemented by the relatively new Status of 

Records provisions, which the Auditor General 

should present to the Entity from time to time, in 

place of its previous Dashboard Report.  

The Auditor General’s Engagement Letter, prior to 

year-end, expressly set-out the focal points of the 

Audit, for a specific year, and they also set the fees 

which they are going to charge for the Audit work. 

These fees are paid for from the Municipality’s 

Equitable Share.  

The Audit Committee references its own agenda, 

and tests compliance with reference to the status 

of records, the Engagement Letter as well as the 

Auditor General’s Corrective Action in terms of 

Section 131 of the MFMA. The Audit Committee 

audits in careful consideration with these aspects 

highlighted by the Auditor General. It notes the 

Auditor General’s areas of emphasis in its 

engagement letter 

Routine topics raised by the Audit Committee are 

fruitless and wasteful expenditure, limitations of 

scope in SCM, Section 32 and 36 of the SCM 

Regulations; Auditor General’s Corrective Action, 

irregular expenditure; and MPAC’s duties to deal 

with it; fraud; and political interference, service 

delivery, Batho Pele, fiscal management; the 

Section 71 Reports, budgets, performance of 

service providers; quarterly reviews and Statutory 

compliance.  

 It also carefully considered financial integrity, 

treasury expenditure, compliance with legislation, 

and alignment with the Performance Regulations of 

2010, and the Municipalities IDP, SDBIP, KPIs and 

KPAs.  

The Auditor General’s audit in the year under 

review; focused in all Municipalities and Entities 

within the District on the Bid Adjudication 

Committee’s prior year compliance, which is very 

open to interpretation, and made findings which it 

determined was non-compliance, which went past 

the prior year’s Auditor General’s Audit.   

The Audit Committee is, however satisfied that it 

properly complied with its Charters and with 

Sections 165 and 166 of the MFMA in the reported 

year.    

7.  CONCLUSION 

I would like to thank Mrs. Jojo, Mr. Dladla, Mr. Zulu 

and Mrs. Elliott for making themselves available to 

serve on this Committee and for the significant 

contribution that they have made, most especially 

with their interrogation of the Financial Statements 

prior to submission to the A.G, as an Audit 

Committee.  We relied to a great extent on the CEO, 

and in particular Mr. Sandile Dlomo from the Board 

of Directors, and the Ugu Internal Audit team.   The 

Auditor-General and its generous allocation of time 

to the Entity. All other invitees to our meetings, 

including the external service providers have also 

provided invaluable service to the Committee and 

the Entity. 

 

 

____________________ 

Mr Paul Preston 

Chairperson: UGU District Municipality 

Shared Services Audit Committee 

For South Coast Development Agency 

Date: 17 January 2020 
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4. OUR VISION 
 

‘Ugu South Coast Development Agency is a district development agency intent on becoming a 

leading catalyst in unlocking the growth and development potential of the Ugu district to the 

benefit of all’ 

5. OUR MISSION 

‘Our mission is to transform the economy through integrated and sustainable job creation, 

investment promotion and vibrant stakeholder engagement.’ 

6. OUR MANDATE 

Carry out the promotion and implementation of high impact economic development initiatives 

and investment promotions in Ugu District Municipality aimed at creating sustainable jobs and 

poverty eradication  

7. HIGH LEVEL INDICATORS FOR UGU DISTRICT  
 

The following are the high-level indicators for the Ugu District as provided by the KZN Treasury 

• 733 765 people reside in Ugu.  

• The largest age cohort in the District of Ugu is between the ages 15-64 at 55.6 per cent. 

This age group constitutes the Economically Active Population (EAP). The age cohort of 0-

4 makes up approximately 11.8 per cent of the populous.  

• Ugu's greatest sectoral contribution to national GDP is Agriculture at 2.7 per cent, 

followed by Construction and Trade at 1 and 0.9 per cent, respectively.  

• The District's contribution to the provincial Real GDP equates to 4.4 per cent, placing it 

fourth out of the 10 districts and one Metro in the KZN.  

• Of KZN's total workforce, 5.6 per cent are employed in Ugu.  

• The Ray Nkonyeni Local Municipality employs the most people in the region, employing 

84 842 persons, which translates into 56.9 per cent.  

• The Tertiary Sector, at 73.1 per cent employs the most people in Ugu, followed by the 

Secondary Sector at 18.7 per cent, and the Primary Sector at 8.2 per cent.  

• Unemployment in Ugu is relatively high, with 26 per cent of females, and 28.8 per cent of 

males being out of work.  

• Ugu has a low Human Development Index (HDI) of 0.6 per cent, indicating poor human 

development.  

• The Gini Coefficient of the District increased from 0.6 in 2015 to 0.62 in 2017, indicating a 

high degree of income inequality.  

• Ugu had a poverty rate of 60.1 per cent in 2007 which decreased to 53.3 per cent in 2017. 

Despite the decline, this is above the norm of the province (50.3 per cent).  

• At a district level, Ugu saw a decline in the number of persons without any formal 

schooling from 6.2 per cent in 2011 to 4.9 per cent in 2017.  

• The number of people who obtained a matric in Ugu has increased from 13.1 per cent in 

2011 to 15.4 per cent in 2017.  
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• The number of people with HIV in the District has increased from an estimated 105 081 in 

2008 to 118 870 in 2017.  

• There was a decrease in the number of Aids related deaths in Ugu over the period 2008 

through 2017, from 6 013 in 2008 to 2 269 in 2017.  

• The number of households with electricity in Ugu increased from 67.2 per cent in 2007 to 

83.8 per cent in 2017.  

• Despite still delivering services to the District, Ugu had 1 611 households using the bucket 

system in 2011, which increased to 3 410 in 2017; this is due to an increase in the 

population over the said period.  

 

GOVERNANCE 

8. OWNERSHIP 
The Ugu South Coast Development Agency (USCDA) is wholly owned by the UGU District 

Municipality (UDM) and was formed in terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act S84. It is 

governed by the Municipal Finance Management Act 56 of 2003, Municipal Structures Act, 

Municipal System’s Act and the Companies Act. The agency is governed by a Board of Directors, 

appointed in terms of section 93E of the Municipal Systems Act, 2000. The board subscribes to 

the values of good corporate governance and recognises the need to conduct the agency’s affairs 

with integrity and in accordance with generally accepted corporate practices. The board has 

approved a Board Charter which provides guidance to the Directors when discharging their roles 

and responsibilities. The agency and the Board subscribe to the principles of the King II, 111 & IV 

Reports. The relationship between the parent municipality and the agency is governed by a Service 

Level Agreement signed by the two parties.  

The Ugu District Municipality has effective control over USCDA and is responsible for:  

• Ensuring that the annual performance objectives and indicators for the agency are established 

by agreement and are also included in the Agency’s multi-year business plan in accordance 

with S87(5)(d) of the Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003;  

• Monitoring and annually reviewing the Agency’s budget against the agreed upon performance 

objectives and indicators. 

8.1 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Directors are responsible for the following:  

• The provision of effective, transparent and coherent corporate governance and effective 

oversight over the affairs of the Agency;  

• Ensuring oversight on compliance with applicable legislation and agreements;  

• Communicating openly and promptly with the parent municipality of the Agency;  

• Dealing with the parent municipality in good faith.  
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The board of directors are: 

Name  Qualifications  Experience  

Dr S. Nzimande Ph.D. An academic of note having climbed the corporate 

ladder from being an educator to the current position of 

Chief Director – TVET Colleges. Has been a Board 

member for two terms with a Clean Audit 

Mr L Shezi  A pragmatic result driven individual and marine 

specialist with a passion for community development. 

Mr S Dlomo LLB, Unisa Self-employed attorney and a property developer with 

interest in construction. Serving as Chairperson of the 

Corporate Services and Finance Committee and 

passionate about community development in 

impoverished areas, contributing inordinate amount of 

time in such initiatives.  

Mr V Naidoo  Currently MD of Leo Strategic Solutions (Pty) Ltd,  

 Studied Economics at the London School of Economics. 

Holds qualifications in Total Quality Management, 

Production and Financial Management. More recent 

qualifications in Local Economic Development. Currently 

completing dissertation towards MBA. Joined family 

construction business as MD responsible for all aspects 

of construction management in the residential and 

commercial sectors. Ongoing interest and participation 

in Local Economic Development, SMME development 

and mentorship of emerging enterprises. 

Mrs J Crutchfield B.Comm 

Accounting and 

Real Estate 

An accomplished property professional with impeccable 

track record in prestigious and iconic developments, 

notably the Pavilion Shopping Centre, Westville, 

Durban. An active community member passionate 

about the development agenda of the previously 

disadvantaged persons forging strategic partnerships 

for various community upliftment programmes. 

Mrs Z Mthuli  A retired educator with extensive experience on 

nourishing talent and skills development. Served various 

role in non-profit organizations impacting on the 

poorest members of the community. 

Dr E Zungu  An agricultural specialist and an all-rounder in food 

production and rural development 
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8.2 BOARD SUB COMMITTEES 

 

The Board of directors decided to form sub-committees that would deal with issues affecting the 

agency at a more hands-on approach.  The following committees were then formed: 

• Corporate Services and Finance Committee; and 

• Projects Development Committee 

8.2.1 CORPORATE SERVICES AND FINANCE 

The primary objective of the Corporate Services and Finance Committee is to assist the board 

in discharging effective human resources management by reviewing the effectiveness of the 

USCDA’s human resources management systems, practices and procedures, and providing 

recommendations for improvement, and also ensuring compliance to legislation. The 

Committee is also responsible for the preparation of Budget, monitoring expenditure and 

submission of financial reports to Treasury and other stakeholders, as well as IT and corporate 

branding. 

Chairperson : Mr. S. Dlomo 

Members : Mrs. J Crutchfield, Mr V K Naidoo, and Mrs Zonke Mthuli 

8.2.2 PROJECTS DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

The primary objective of the PDC is to ensure the proper implementation of mandated projects 

and management of the investment and trade activities 

Chairperson : Mr. L. Shezi 

Members : Mrs J Crutchfield, Mr S. Dlomo, Dr E Zungu and MR VK Naidoo 

8.2.3 THE AUDIT COMMITTEE – SHARED WITH UGU DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY 

The Committee which is a shared function with the entire family of Ugu municipalities is 

constituted in terms of section 166 of the Municipal Finance Management Act, 56 of 2003. It is 

an independent body that reports to the Board of Directors to assist the Board in discharging 

its duties relating to safeguarding of assets, the operation of adequate system of controls, risk 

management, governance processes and the preparation of accurate financial reporting and 

statements in compliance with all applicable legal requirements and accounting standards 

Chairperson  : Mr Paul Preston 

Members : Ms. C. Elliot, Ms. B. Jojo and Mr. Z. Zulu 

8.3 Board and Sub Committee Meetings 

 

The following table shows the meetings held for the 2018/19 financial year and the attendance 

thereof: - 
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8.4 Remuneration of Board Members 

The following table shows the remuneration of board members as per the circular issued for the 

remunerations of office bearers as issued by the National Treasury: - 

Name   Salary   Board Prep   Other   Total  

Dr SJ Nzimande             56 913.97      51 990.00                   -     108 903.97  

Mr. SD Dlomo             59 919.97   117 827.00      3 235.00   180 981.97  

Mrs. EJ Crutchfield             33 999.96      64 023.00      9 081.95   107 104.91  

Mr. VK Naidoo             34 463.96      61 378.00                   -        95 841.96  

Ms. ZP Mthuli             34 463.96      56 616.00      8 569.70      99 649.66  

Mr. LG Shezi             56 863.97      58 328.00   12 141.00   127 332.97  

Dr EM Zungu             33 368.96      18 000.00   10 817.80      62 186.76  

        782 002.20  

 

9. ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE 

9.1 THE ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE 

The USCDA has utilised an approved organisational structure for its staff complement.  The 

structure was reviewed and approved as of May 23, 2019.  The board considered the current 

requirements of the organisation, as well as the affordability of any adjustments to the structure 

that may have been proposed. The following is the reviewed and approved organisational 

structure: 

NBR OF 

MEETINGS
BOARD

SPECIAL 

BOARD
BOARD BOARD

STRATEGIC 

PLANNING 

SESSION

SPECIAL 

BOARD

SPECIAL 

BOARD
BOARD

*/8 23.8.2018 29.8.2018 22.11.2018 15.1.2019 14 -15.3.2019 05.03.2019 09.04.2019 23.05.2019

1 Dr. Sipho J. Nzimande ✓ ✓ Apol ✓ ✓ ✓ Apol ✓

2 Joy Crutchfield ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ Attended

3 Sandile Dlomo ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ Apol ✓ ✓ ✓ Apol Apologies

4 Vijay Naidoo ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ a Absent

5 Lindelani Shezi ✓ Apol Apol ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ Apol ✓ (dep early)

6 Dr. Ephraim Zungu ✓ Apol ✓ ✓ Apol ✓ Apol Apol ✓ (late arrival)

7 Zonke Mthuli ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ Apol ✓

8 Inkosi Machi Apol Apol a a a a a a

OBSERVERS

1 Cllr. Chiliza Apol Apol Apol Apol Apol Apol Apol Apol

INVITED

1 Bongeka Jojo Apol ✓ Apol Apol Apol Apol ✓ Apol

2 Zevile Dlamini Apol Apol Apol

1 CEO ✓ Apol ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

2 Buhle Fikeni ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

3 Ashney Naidoo ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ n/a ✓ ✓ ✓

4 N Hlongwane (ACEO) ✓ ✓

BOARD MEMBERS Legend:

IN ATTENDANCE
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9.2 THE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT  

 

9.2.1 Financial Management Systems 

Financial systems are an integral part of ensuring that the finances of the agency are accurately 

accounted for and reported to the relevant structures. The agency currently utilises SAGE 

Evolution for accounting transactions and SAGE People for its payroll systems.  The two systems 

are seamlessly integrated to ensure complete reporting of all transactions. 

The systems are hosted by the parent, Ugu District Municipality. This means that financial 

obligations that relate to the system with regards to licensing, backups and other processes are 

borne by the parent.   

Issues have been raised with Ugu officials and consultants relating to the provision of support to 

the agency on the systems and these are continuously being managed. 

9.2.2 Financial Position 

The agency has experienced a financial difficulty throughout the financial year emanating from a 

number of reasons.  This difficulty will be demonstrated in the Annual Financial Statements in the 

subsequent paragraphs. These can be listed as follows: 

• Reliance of grant funding: The agency heavily relies on grant funding from the parent and 

all local municipalities within the district.  Although efforts have been made to source 

funds from other sources, there have not been any positive outcomes; 

• Budgeting: Considering the reliance on grant funding, it follows that the budgets 

compiled by the agency would be guided by what is being budgeted for by the parent and 
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the local municipalities.  Due to the fact that the same institutions may be having their 

own budgetary constraints, the agency gets affected the same way; 

• Delayed payment of allocations: To add to the difficulties already mentioned, there has 

been a continued trend of late payments of allocations to the agency.  This has negatively 

impacted on the ability of the agency to meet it operational obligations as they fall due. 

The result of this has been strained relationships with creditors, as well as incurrence of 

fruitless and wasteful expenditure due to interest incurred on late payments, e.g. SARS. 

 

9.2.3 OPERATING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

In keeping with applicable legislations and good governance practices, the agency developed 

policies and procedures that guide the day to day running of the institution.  These policies are 

reviewed regularly to ensure continued compliance with legislations and circulars issued by 

various governing institutions like the National Treasury.  New policies are also developed when 

circumstances that require that present themselves.   

The following is a listing of policies currently being utilised, introduced, and some being reviewed. 

• HR Policies 

o Recruitment & Selection 

o Training 

o Acting 

o Remuneration 

o Cell phone & 3G Data 

o Disciplinary Code & Procedure 

o Leave 

o Resettlement 

o Termination & Exit 

o Individual Performance Management System 

o Ethics & Conduct 

o Business Continuity & Disaster Recovery Plan 

• Finance Policies 

o Petty Cash 

o Asset Management 

o Bank & Cash Management 

o Declaration of Interest 

o Supply Chain Management 

o Delegation of Authority by the Board 

o Procurement & Payment Systems 

o Subsistence & Travel 

o Organisational Performance Management 

o Creditors’ 

o Cost Containment – New 

o Funding Model – New 

o Fraud Prevention 

o Budget Policy 

o Virements Policy 

o Enterprise Risk Management 



 

 

 
20 

USCDA Annual Report 2019/20 

• IT Policies 

o IT & Organisational Communication – under review  

PERFORMANCE 

10. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION 
 

10.1  AGRICULTURE 

Studies and various reports from scholars across the spectrum confirm that Ugu is a 

predominantly agricultural area with commercial agriculture co-existing with vast tracts of fallow 

fields. The land productivity report confirms that that Ugu has one of the fertile soils in the country 

and an abundance of land currently lying fallow remains an opportunity cost in terms of poverty 

eradication and employment creation. Based on the conviction that tourist nature of the Ugu area 

provides an excellent opportunity for market access to rural folk, the entity forged strategic 

partnerships for massive cultivation of fallow fields. The highlights tabulated indicate the zeal of 

Ugu people in finding local solutions to local challenges as the response from tourism product 

owners in accessing produce sourced locally has proved to be a winning formula.  

A. PARTNERSHIPS WITH THE PRIVATE SECTOR 

Engagements with IDWALA Carbonate (lime mine) resulted in sponsorship for 15 hectors 

cultivation of moringa and vegetables in the poverty stricken and depressed area of 

KwaMadlala. As a result of the sponsorship it was possible to install irrigation infrastructure, 

fencing and further supply the beneficiary community with and the support estimated to R6 

million has confirmed the company’s commitment to responsive and as approved in their 

social labour plans or high impact corporate social investment (CSI). This ground-breaking 

initiative culminated into the cultivation of 15 hectares of previously fallow land with the niche 

moringa, high value medicinal moringa and vegetables. The beneficiary community has 

embraced the initiative with open arms thereby motivating the entity to explore further 

possible opportunities for partnerships. In the current year the same project received the 

funding of R200 000(two hundred thousand Rands) from AgriSETA for institutional 

mentorship programme. Further to facilitation role by USCDA funding applications were 

circulated to 36 JSE listed companies as well as 8 government departments. As and when funds 

become available the initiative will be replicated to other deserving Amakhosi areas.  

B. NATIONAL SCHOOL NUTRITION PROJECT  

 

Figure 1Sivusisizwe Cooperative -Chazuka Umdoni Local Municipality 
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A generous start-up grant from the KwaZulu Natal Department of Cooperative Governance 

and Traditional Affairs enabled the entity to play a meaningful contribution in the mobilization 

of mainly rural women to be actively engaged in the cultivation of vegetables for the lucrative 

school nutrition project. The R3m grant that was received made a positive financial impact to 

6 schemes and total 43 community gardens scattered throughout Ugu were assisted in 

accessing potential markets, ranging in size from 1 hectare to as big as 35 hectare each as 

irrigation equipment was rehabilitated and seedlings bought. The greatest impact was on 

convincing people involved in community gardens to think beyond cabbages and amadumbe 

as these appeared to be in over-supply and rather channelling then to the vegetables aligned 

to the NSNP project. The success of the initiative led to the entity getting a request to 

complement the butternut and dry beans supply needed by private markers, the Harry Gwala 

Development Agency and farmers along the Harding / Umzimkhulu border as well as those 

along Highflats / Umzimkhulu came in handy to fill in the gap. Despite the contract with 

Department of Education (DoE) as the market, USCDA successfully sustained the good 

relationship with private markets i.e.  SPAR, Stokfel Hub, Pick n Pay for the produce that was 

already planted for the NSNP market. The entity reserved market stands in local exhibitions, 

district INDABA by Agriculture and sister entity South Coast Tourism.   

C. AMAKHOSI MACADAMIA INITIATIVE  

Macadamia production in Amakhosi areas have received a significant attention by national 

government departments i.e. Department of Economic Development (DED), Department of 

Agriculture and Forest and Fisheries (DAFF), Department of Agriculture and Rural 

Development, etc. The discussions on the production of Macadamia are underway in the 

district led by the appointed team by Deputy Minister Ms M. Masuku (DED). The initiate 

focuses on KwaNzimakwe Tribal Authority that is under Ray Nkonyeni Local Municipality.  The 

Deputy Minister visited KwaNzimakwe and a 54Ha trust land was presented where a new 

macadamia farming project is proposed. 

The appetite of producing this niche market crop is supported with number of desktop studies 

i.e. DAFF performed one that assessed the extent of macadamia production in Southern KZN. 

The data shows that there are 300 macadamia producers in Southern KZN that includes Ugu 

District producers, and there are already 200 000 trees in production or almost in production 

with a guaranteed market. Additional, Ugu have invested opportunities in agriculture across 

and macadamia is amongst the priority commodities. In Department of Rural Development 

and Land Reform (DRDLR) Agri-Park Business Plan it highlighted strongly to have a 

comparative advantage in agriculture space. The existing grower structure i.e. Southern KZN 

Macadamia Grower Association that was formed for macadamia will assist in correct technical 

skills transfer as well as sustainability of the production of macadamia.    

D. AGRO-PROCESSING 
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Figure 2: Mushrooms 

The year under review supported new agro-processors in the district i.e. Moriga Powder and 

Tea, Oyster Mushrooms, Frozen Potato etc. New agro processors were enrolled for HACCP 

training by SABS which was half funded by DAFF. The facilitation of agro process accessing 

markets by the entity is on-going for both old and new agro-processors. Agro processors have 

been exposed to international, domestic markets and collaborative efforts with other district 

stakeholders has been remarkable.  

 

10.2 PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT 

Driven by the strategic intent of altering the skewed spatial patters that reinforces the stereotypes 

of the pre-1994 era, the Board took a conscious decision to facilitate implementation of high 

impact property development initiatives in the hinterland. 

a. KwaXolo Caves   

“The hidden treasure of the KZN South Coast” 

An adrenalin pumping eco-adventure centre in the midst of the rural KwaXolo area finally 

managed to get to implementation as the supply chain management processes that needed to 

be undertaken with precision based on the complexity and uniqueness fo the project needed a 

great deal of precision. As a reminder the project entails linking the Khoisan rock art located at 

the foot of a cave with the main administration centre together with a critical mass of 

complementary activities. Service provider was appointed and took occupation of the site on 

the 2nd of May 2018. A total of 14 local persons have been employed with 2 being females. Just 

on construction alone the project has demonstrated the power of capacity building as locals 

employed in the project had to undergo specialist training based on the extremely risky nature 

of the work that needed to be undertaken. It has been an enriching experience to visit the site 

and find women hard at work hanging on anchored steel ropes, installing the harnesses on a 

cliff. Credit goes to the local contractor for believing in local empowerment as the non-

negotiable pre-condition for being awarded the project was the transfer of skills on the trickiest 

and highly technical part of the project. Partnership with KZN CoGTA, Ray Nkonyeni and Ugu 

South Coast Tourism has culminated into an operating model that will ensure involvement of 

locals in the day-to-day management of the operations. In simple terms the initiative is a 

practical manifestation of the Operation Vula model which in effect means opening up Amakhosi 

areas as viable nodes for economic activity and inward investment. 
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Figure 3 : View Deck pergola railings being installed and 
completion of walkway leading to the first view deck. 

 

 

Figure 4 : Construction of the second view site pergola 
under way. 

 

 

Figure 5 : View exiting the welcome centre and pathway 
to the first view site. 

b. Amandawe Precinct Plan 

This is the urban design framework for the development of Amandawe rural area in Umdoni into 

a viable node that will serve as a blueprint in attracting investment into the KwaCele Traditional 

area. The plan was duly adopted by Umdoni Council in February 2019 and funding was made 

available by the Department of Rural Development, following from a funding application that 

was submitted by the entity. Going forward the framework will guide in investment decisions 

and will be incorporated into the Ugu Investment Brochure to be marketed to embassies abroad 

for circulation to potential investors. 

c. South Coast Film Studios 

The project entails construction of upmarket film studios, meeting international standards, 

inland of the Southcoast mall adjacent to the cemetery, in the Ray Nkonyeni Municipality. A US-

based developer has been appointed and a lease agreement was subsequently signed between 

RNM and the developer. Furthermore, the entity consolidated a suite of incentives offered by 

government and circulated the information to the developer. In 2019/2020 the role of the entity 

will be to monitor implementation in line with the strategic direction taken by the Board that all 

the initiatives should have as a bare minimum, 30% of procurement and business opportunities 

accruing to locally based enterprises.   
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10.3 SMME SUPPORT  

During the period under review, one hundred and twenty-six (126) small businesses were assisted 

with company registrations, change of directors, access to finance and tax matters. There has been 

good a working relationship with SEDA office based at Port Shepstone before registering SMMEs 

were referred to SEDA for business inception training. Once they are trained then SEDA would 

write them a referral letter to USCDA for registration.  All invoices were paid within the statutory 

timelines of 30 days with an overall of 75% of the entity’s budget being spent on locally based 

SMMEs. All tenders and quotations issued by the entity had as a precondition for appointment 

the non-negotiable requirement of 30% for each opportunity going to Ugu based SMMEs. 

Partnership with the Ugu Association of Business assisted in mitigating the violent incidents of 

local emerging businesses demanding 30% procurement from each project initiated within the 

district. As a result, the untenable scenes of violent disruptions to mainly construction projects 

were successfully mitigated.  

10.4 RENEWABLE ENERGY PROJECT  

The ground breaking mega bio-ethanol and bio-fuel project for the Umuziwabantu will serve as a 

game changer for genuine rural development as it aims to massify cultivation of sweet sorghum 

to be used as an input in bio-ethanol. On the other hand, sugar can and remnants of the timber 

plantations will be used as inputs for bio-fuels and the magnitude of the project has led to it being 

showcased as one of the KZN flagship projects to be marketed abroad whenever investment 

envoys interact with ambassadors and potential investors abroad and in Africa. Umuziwabantu 

Renewable Energy is one of the few projects that was profiled at the Presidential Investment 

Summit that was held in September 2018. As at the end of the financial year professional service 

providers for pre-planning and a draft Environmental Scoping Report had been produced as at end 

June 2019. 

10.5 MARKETING AND INVESTMENT PROMOTION 

a. Ambassadors’ dinner 

In partnership with the DTI and TIKZN, the entity managed to attend the networking session 

with the ambassadors representing the country in foreign countries and the Investment and 

Marketing Manager got to network with these esteemed persons and knowing them on a first 

name basis. As a consequence, the USCDA Investment Brochure was circulated to all embassies 

abroad in a cost-effective manner. This is in line with cost containment measures adopted by 

the Board to minimize financial exposure and rather maximize returns. During the year under 

review, the entity also managed to make its presence felt at the Japanese / South Africa Bilateral 

Trade engagement at which the Ugu Investment Brochure was also circulated.  

b. Website 

In line with ongoing trends of continuous improvement the entity began a process of revamping 

its website to be able to be on the cutting edge of digital marketing. This is based on the 

realization that the website is the point of interface with potential investors and that it must be 

on par with our competitors.  
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c. Manufacturing Indaba (14 – 15 August 2019) 

The annual KwaZulu-Natal Manufacturing Indaba was hosted at the Durban ICC from 14-15 

August 2019. The aim of the Manufacturing Indaba and its provincial roadshows was to focus 

and boost the growth potential of key industry sectors and to provide a platform for informative 

and interactive sessions with the prime movers of the nation’s manufacturing sectors. 

Although USCDA did not have an exhibition stand at the Manufacturing Indaba, IPM facilitated 

participation of one (1) company from our district under the banner of TIKZN. IPM submitted 3 

companies to TIKZN for consideration but only one company was selected. The companies 

submitted were: 

Company Products 

Goldenglo Oil, Soap & Candles 

KZN Fence & Gate Gate & Fencing Supplies 

Coastal Lounge & Mattress Mattress 

 

The selected company was Goldenglo. IPM worked in collaboration with the Chamber of 

commerce in securing their participation. 

d. Umdoni Investment Summit (15 August 2019) 

The summit was a gathering of property developers, representatives of local business forums 

and key sector departments to forge long-term business relations to address some 

development challenges. These challenges include low to moderate levels of economic activity, 

high levels of unemployment, low skills base and high infrastructure needs, amongst others. 

As one of the economic hubs of the Ugu District and one of the five secondary investment nodes 

of the province, the municipality has significant investment and growth potential, with 

agriculture and tourism being the main economic sectors that form the backbone of the Umdoni 

local economy. The aim of the summit was to attract investment and create employment in new 

and existing industries, as well as to unlock the investment potential of key economic sectors 

within the municipality. 

On the agenda was to improve the business environment through competitive transaction and 

regulatory costs, streamlined business licensing processes, well-developed local infrastructure 

and sound investment value proposition. 

It is worth mentioning that at the Summit, Umdoni announced the long-awaited investment 

incentives. 

e. KZN Investment Conference Briefing (31 August 2019) 

 As preparation for the KZN Investment Conference, TIKZN came to our offices on the 31st of 

August 2019 for a briefing session. The briefing session was attended by members of the 

business community, TIKZN executive – Mr Sihle Ngcamu and Ms Neliswa Dlamini, South Coast 

Business Chamber, and Ugu Business Association representatives. USCDA was the main 

coordinator for the briefing session. IPM organised all logistical arrangements which were the 

following: 

• Extend invitations to LED officials, business community and other stakeholders as TIKZN 

expected them to be part of the meeting 
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• Coordinate catering arrangements which TIKZN covered in terms of costs 

• Liaise with the South Coast Chamber for them to extend invitations to business people 

• Follow up/ confirm attendance of people (especially officials) 

 

The briefing session was well attended and TIKZN officials expressed their appreciation for 

organising the event and the broad presence of majority of stakeholders. 

f. KZN Investment Conference (12- 14 September) 

The KZN Investment Conference took place on 12-14 September 2019. During the conference, 

construction of the Durban Aerotropolis was announced as one of major projects in the 

province. The area would become a trade hub, offering modern residential areas and 

recreational facilities. The MEC for economic development Dube-Ncube said trillions of Rands 

in investment were expected and thousands of jobs should be created.  

With the country desperate for investment into its economy, Dube-Ncube said she was on a 

mission to mobilise funding which would assist in transforming the largely rural province into a 

modern society. The international investment conference themed Aerotropolis was hosted with 

the effort to attract more investors to the hub and other flagship projects within the province. 

The conference also provided a platform to market projects in the province such as the Durban 

Point Waterfront development, the Dube Trade Port, the special economic zones and provincial 

economic hubs. The Aerotropolis would comprise of 32,000 hectares, 42 million square metres 

of development and was expected to house 1.5 million residents. 

10.6 STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENTS 

 

a. Growth and Development Plan 

In line with its coordination mandate on matters that affect the development of the area, the 

entity undertook the review of the Ugu Growth and Development Plan as the original one was 

developed in 2012. The intention was to factor in new information that has since come to the 

fore and in particular the realignment of municipal boundaries after the 2016 local 

government elections. The reviewed plan which was a culmination of multi-stakeholder 

engagements was finally adopted by Ugu in November 2018. Going forward, the responsibility 

of the entity is to coordinate and monitor its implementation submitting reports to 

stakeholders on annual basis. It needs to be mentioned that the contribution of civil society 

and the business community (both organized and informal) has been extremely tremendous. 

However, same cannot not be said with the public service as efforts by government to account 

for jobs created are hampered by the reluctance of sector departments operating within Ugu 

to submit quarterly reports on both jobs created and expenditure on locally based SMMEs. 

b. Community Radio Stations 

The impact of advertising our services on local community radio stations has had the benefit 

of increasing brand awareness of the entity on critical services needed by the budding 

enterprises. The strategic location of our offices at the centre of Port Shepstone made it 

possible for SMMEs across the district to access our services more conveniently that to visit 

individual municipal LED offices. A total of 126 individuals and SMMEs combined were assisted 

with a wide spectrum of business-related services ranging from tax clearance, tender 

documentation, company registrations, market access and focussed business support. The 
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partnership with Ithala, SEDA / SEFA and the Port Shepstone based incubation centre gave 

true meaning to the benefits of collaboration as the role of the entity is to coordinate 

stakeholders for maximum efficiencies.  

c. Amakhosi 

The sound relations forged with Amakhosi in Ugu has culminated in at least 700 hectares of 

land in their respective areas being pledged for massive cultivation. As at the end of the 

financial year the entity managed to coordinate the private sector to sponsor the conversion 

of fallow with cultivation of niche crops. The grant from KZN CoGTA also assisted greatly as a 

total of 6 irrigation schemes were assisted with inputs and irrigation infrastructure. 

11. CHALLENGES 

• Funding for Umzumbe River Trail 

In line with the commitment to open up Amakhosi areas as viable nodes of economic entity, the 

Board resolved to be an implementing agent for the planned Umzumbe River Trail project. In this 

regard a decision was undertaken to raise funding for the project on behalf of the sister entity, 

Ugu Southcoast Tourism, and upon receipt to commence with implementation. It needs to be 

noted that an amount of R37 million is needed to translate the concept in reality. A fund-raising 

action plan for the project was developed targeting both the private sector companies as well as 

government departments for sponsorship or grant funding. Consequently, the target to 

commence with implementation could not be achieved as most companies approached lament 

the declining state of the economy with a debilitating effect on their ability to contribute 

meaningfully to community projects. On quarterly basis, reports on efforts undertaken by the 

administration to raise funding are submitted to the Board for proper scrutiny and monitoring.  

• Reports on jobs created 

The impact of government interventions on communities served is felt by the number of jobs that 

have been created as well as the percentage of budget spent on locally based enterprises. In 

implementing the Growth and Development Plan of the district, the entity undertook to 

coordinate reporting by government departments on each of the 2 categories. Reports for data 

on both jobs created as well as jobs created could not be received and consequently the target 

was not achieved. The Mayor’s office and the Municipal Manager of Ugu were then requested to 

liaise with the respective MECs to impress on the respective senior officials to submit the reports. 

In relation to the entity’s initiatives a total of 14 construction related jobs were created and 98 

people involved in community gardens benefitting from agricultural related inputs and irrigation 

infrastructure.   

• Ifafa Industrial Park. 

This is a light industrial hub to be located along the N2 / Ifafa interchange in line with the strategic 

objective of well-located and serviced land for industrial development. The entity purchased a 99-

hectare farm currently under sugar cane with an intention of rezoning it and developing into a 

light industrial estate. The application for permission to release the far from agricultural usage 

was submitted in July 2017 to the National Department of Agric and an adverse response, turning 

the request down, was received a year later, specifically in November 2018. The Board, convinced 

that the intention to provide serviced sites for light industrial activity is noble, mandated the CEO 

to lodge an appeal with the Minister for Agriculture. The appeal memorandum was hand delivered 
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to the Minister’s office in January 2019 and to date the matter has not been finalized. The matter 

has since been escalated to Trade and Investment KZN as it nullifies the good intentions of Red 

Tape reduction and it is their intervention will produce the desired outcome.  

12. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT REPORT – 2018/2019 
The narrative provided in the preceding section providing highlights during the year under review 

as well as giving an indication of challenges experienced is illustrated further in the table that 

follows. The greatest challenge has been setting of targets depending on external parties and 

mostly with no funding.  
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ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLAN - 2018/2019

Annual Target Actual ANNUAL TARGET ACTUAL
ACHIEVED/NOT 

ACHIEVED
CHALLENGEES CORRECTIVE ACTIONS

SO 1 USCDA

SO 1.1 4 3.7 Risk Management Comprehensive Risk 

Register

Complete risk register by 

30 November 1 Risk register completed by 

30/11/2017
1 Risk register completed

1 Risk Register by 30 

November
1 Risk Register by 30 November Achieved N/A N/A

Operational M:Fin

SO 1.2 4 3.7 Risk Management Risk Policy Review Date Risk Management 

reviewed

1 Risk management policy 

approved by 31/12/2017

1 Risk management policy 

approved by 31/12/2017

Policy reviewed by 

2018/03/31
Risk Register and  reviewed Not Achieved

The policy is still being reviewed 

and the engagement with 

Treasury did not cater for the 

review of the policy as well

Review the policy in the 

2019/20 financial year
Operational

M:Fin

SO 1.3 4 3.7 Internal Audit & 

AG Queries

AG & Internal Audit queries 

resolution

Percentage of 

AG/Internal Audit 

queries resolved per 

quarter

100% 92% 100% 100% Achieved N/A N/A

Operational M:Fin

SO 1.4 4 3.7 Performance 

Management 

System (PMS)

Q1 & 3 verbal; Half-year and 

Annual performance 

appraisals

Quarterly performance 

appraisals of CEO
4 4 4 2 Not Achieved

The target will be changed to 

reflect records of appraisal as 

against verbal

The target will be chnged in 

July to reflect records of 

appraisals 

Operational Board/CEO

SO 1.5 4 3.7 Municipal Entity 

Website

Legislated SCM notices 

publication

Percentage of 

notifications uploaded
100% 100% 100% 100% Achieved N/A N/A

Operational M:Fin

SO 1.6 4 3.7 Financial Reporting Monthly management 

accounts production

Management reports, 

ledger and 

reconciliations by 5th 

working day of the 

following month 

12 5 12 12 Achieved

In some months challenges 

were experience with the 

interface of the payroll and 

accounting systems

Perform manuall journals 

instead of the interface when 

the challenges occur

Operational M:Fin

SO 1.7 4 3.7 S87 Financial 

Reporting

Monthly financial report 

production

Monthly reports by the 

7th working day of the 

following month
12 5 12 12 Achieved

In some months challenges 

were experience with the 

interface of the payroll and 

accounting systems

Perform manuall journals 

instead of the interface when 

the challenges occur

Operational M:Fin

SO 1.8 4 3.7 PMS Reporting Quarterly performance 

report production

Quarterly reports
4 4 4 4 Achieved N/A N/A

Operational M:Fin

SO 1.9 4 3.7 Financial Planning Mid-year adjusted budget 

review

Board resolution by 

15/01/19 Mid year report produced by 

2018/01/20

Mid year report produced by 

2018/01/20
15/01/2019 Resolved on 15/01/2019 Achieved N/A N/A

Operational M:Fin

SO 1.10 fiancial Planning Mid-year adjusted budget 

review

Submission to Ugu by 

20/01/2019 N/A N/A 20/01/2019 Submitted 16/01/2019 Achieved N/A N/A

Operational

SO 1.11 4 3.7 Finance Policies Budget, Finance and Supply 

Chain Policy review

Review Policies by 31 

May Review of finance policies by 

31/05/2018

Policies reviewed and approved 

in May 2018
31/05/2019

Policies reviewed before 31 May 

20119
Achieved N/A N/A Operational

M:Fin

SO 1.12 4 3.7 Annual Report Draft Annual Report 

produced by 30 December 

2018

Annual Report Adoption 

by 31 December
Annual Report by 31/12/2017 Annual Report by 31/12/2017

Draft Annual Report 

produced 

by31/12/2018

Draft Annual Report produced 

by 31/12/2018
Achieved N/A N/A

Operational M:Fin

UguDM 

IDP Ref

National 

KPA#
S/O#

6.   Implement

 ANNUAL BUDGET 

YEAR UNDER REVIEW 2018/2019Comparatives 2017/18

3 - Local Economic Development (LED)

5 - Good Governance and Public Participation

Each Strategic Objective must be informed by (linked to) one of these KPAs

3.   Ensure strategic partnerships

They must also be linked to the Parent Municipalities OPMS

4.   Leverage financial resources for economic development in the district

5.   Bring focus and resources together to deliver (co-ordination)

4 - Municipal Financial Viability and Management

UGU SOUTH COAST DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

1 - Municipal Transformation and Organisational Development

2 - Infrastructure Development and Basic Service Delivery

1.  Lead market development

2.  Mobilise the private sector

Key Performance Areas (KPAs) in Local Government: Municipal Planning and Performance Management Regulations (2001):Six roles that a DDA should play:

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLAN

YEAR UNDER REVIEW 2018/2019

KPIPROJECTPROGRAMME

Institutional Compliance: To ensure that USCDA operations are compliant with all regulatory frameworks

OWNER
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SO 1.13 4 3.7 Annual Financial 

Statements

Draft AFS & Performance 

Report to AG

AFS and Annual PMS 

report by 31 August
1

AFS and Annual PMS report by 

31 August

31/08/2018
AFS and PMS submitted on 31 

August 2018
Achieved N/A N/A

126 000.00R                 M:Fin

SO 1.14 4 3.7 Audit Compliance AG Report Unqualified Audit 

Opinion
1

Unqualified Audit Opinion
1 Anqualified Audit Opinion Achieved N/A N/A

Operational M:Fin

SO 1.15 4 3.7 MFMA Compliance Fruitless & Wasteful and 

Irregular Expenditure - 

Section 102 report

F&W exp <1% of total 

exp reported to Board
<1% >1% <1% 0.39% Achieved N/A N/A Operational

M:Fin

SO 1.16 4 3.7 Budget Planning in 

terms of the 

MFMA

Draft 2019/2020 budget 

approved by the Board

Draft approved by 31 

January 2019

1 0 31/01/2019
Draft budget approved on 

15/01/2019
Achieved N/A N/A Operational

M:Fin

SO 1.17 4 3.7 MSCOA 

Implementation

Actively participate in 

MSCOA  steering committee 

Compliance with MSCOA 

targets 

4 5 4 3 Not Achieved
No meeting convened for one of 

the quarters

The target will be set such 

that it reflects that all 

meetings will be attended

Operational

M:Fin

SO 1.18 4 3.7 Liquidity Business Plans approved by 

the Board and submitted to 

stakeholders

Date Business Plans 

approved
N/A N/A

20 Business plans by 

31 March 2019
20 Business plans submitted Achieved N/A N/A

Operational M:Fin and 

CEO

SO 1.19 4 3.7 Implementing 

Agent 

Proposals submitted to 

government departments

No of govt depts / 

municipalities
N/A N/A 4 0 Not Achieved Negative responses Continue applying

Operational M:Fin and 

CEO

SO 1.20 4 3.7 Fund raising Amount of funding raised R20m 

N/A N/A R20m 0 Not Achieved
No positive responses have 

been received
Continue applying

Operational M:Fin and 

CEO

SO 1.21 4 3.7 CIPC Compliance Submit AFS and all 

corporate changes

CIPC up to date by year 

end 1 1 1 1 Achieved N/A N/A

500.00R                         M:Fin

SO 2 USCDA

SO 2.1 1 3.7 Staff Development Short course / conference 

attendance

Number of shortcourses 

attended as per the 

Training Plan

8 4 4 0 Not Achieved
There were not enough funds 

for the trainings

Alternative training providers 

will be sought that offer 

training with no charge e.g. 

Treasury, SETA's etc

50 000.00R                   M:Fin/CEO

SO 2.2 1 3.7 Corporate Identity Update USCDA website and 

maintainance 

12 updates to websites 

1 1 12 12 Achieved N/A N/A

50 000.00R                   M:IPM/CEO

Capacity Building: To Capacitate USCDA to deliver and implement its core functions efficiently and effectively
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SO 2.3 1 3.7 Corporate Identity Ensure all brand & 

marketing material 

compliant with USCDA 

Review & produce brand 

& marketing material

1 1 1 1 Achieved N/A N/A

50 000.00R                   M:IPM/CEO

SO 3

SO 3.1 3 3.7 UDM

SO 3.1.1 3 3.7.9 GDS Table progress reports  to  

Municipal Councils on GDS 

Implementation Plan

no of progress reports  

to  Municipalities 2 4 10 0 Not Achieved

Dates for the engagements 

could not be secured

Focus groups to be pursued in 

the new financial year

10 000.00R                   CEO

SO 3.1.2 3 3.7.9 GDS Date GDS Review 

completed 

Adoption of Reviewed 

GDS by Ugu N/A N/A 1 1 Achieved N/A N/A

Operational CEO

SO 3.1.3 3 3.7.9 Reports on jobs 

created 

Quarterly reports on jobs 

created by government 

departments within Ugu

Number of reports on 

jobs created

N/A N/A 4 0 Not Achieved

Reports not received from 

respective departments

The Mayor of the district to be 

engaged to intervene on the 

matter

Operational CEO

SO 3.1.4 3 3.7.9 Expenditure on 

SMMEs in Ugu

All government 

departments reporting on 

jobs created

Number of report  on 

30% expenditure

N/A N/A 4 0 Not Achieved

Reports not received from 

respective departments

The Mayor of the district to be 

engaged to intervene on the 

matter

Operational CEO

SO 3.2 3 UDM

SO 3.2.1 3 3.7.9

Investment 

promotion

Incentives adopted by all 

municipalities

Number of municipalities 

adopted Incentives 

N/A N/A 5 0 Not Achieved

Incentives present 

municipalities with budgetary 

requirements.

Incentives have been 

presented to all municilities, 

LM's should resolve on 

incentives to be pursued

Operational CEO

SO 3.2.2 3 3.7.9 Investment 

promotion

Develop digital brochures 

and leaflets

Investment brochures, 

leaflets developed 
1 1 1 1 Achieved N/A N/A

20 000.00R                   MIPM

SO 3.2.3 3 3.7.9 Investment 

promotion

Promoting Ugu at 

Investment Conferences

Number of Investment 

conferences at which 

Ugu is promoted

2 2 1 1 Achieved N/A N/A

30 000.00R                   M:IPM

SO 3.2.4 3 3.7.9 Investment 

promotion

Organize and host  Ugu 

Investment Conference 

Investment 

opportunities 

N/A N/A 1 0 Not Achieved

Provincial Conference has not 

convened its conference, and as 

such district conferences could 

not be convened

Plan an investment 

conference aligned to the 

provincial conference in the 

new financial year, funds 

allowing.

150 000.00R                 MIPM

Implement the Growth and Development Strategy of the Ugu District - Vision 2030

Implement an Investment Promotion & Facilitation Strategy for the Ugu District

Investement Promotion: To promote the growth and development of the Ugu District Vision 2030 
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3.2.5 3 3.7.9 Investment 

promotion

Attend local,provincial and 

national exhibitions for  

exposure and marketing the 

agency 

Number of exhibitions 

N/A N/A 4 3 Not Achieved

There were no local exhibitions 

relevant to the agency and even 

if there were exhibitions 

financial position was a 

challenge.

The Projects Committee 

concluded that USCDA 

partners with the province 

and exhibit under their banner

50 000.00R                   MIPM

SO 3.2.6 3 3.7.9 Investment 

promotion

Rand value of investment 

into Ugu as a result of 

marketing and investment 

attraction initiatives

Rand value of inward 

investment to Ugu

N/A N/A R100m 0 Not Achieved

No  inward invesment has been 

realised

Continue with the applications 

and liason with prospective 

investors in the new financial 

year.

30 000.00R                   IPM

SO 3.3 3 USCDA

SO3.3.1 3 3.7.4 Business Support Organise information 

sharing sessions  for SMMEs Number of sessions 

organised
6 6 4 4 Achieved N/A n/4

30 000.00R                   M:Dev SP

SO 3.3.2 3 3.7.4 Business Support Identify local SMMEs with  

viable business case Number of businesses 

identified 
2 3 10 8 Not Achieved

No viable businesses were 

identified

Assist with business support 

as an ongoing process 

Operational M:Dev SP

SO 3.3.3 3 3.7.4 Business Support Train SMMEs on 

capacity,productivity  and 

business management skills

Number of businesses 

identified 
N/A N/A 10 6 Not Achieved

No SMME's could be identified 

for the training

Efforts to continue in the new 

financial year for the training 

of the SMMEs

Operational M:Dev SP

SO 3.3.4 3 3.7.4 MOU s with key 

strategic partners

MOUs signed for funding of 

SMMEs No of MOUs signed N/A N/A 4 5 Achieved N/A N/A

Operational

SO 3.3.5 3 3.7.4 Business Support 
Establish good working 

relationship with 

departments/sectors that 

provide  business support 

sevices 

Number of business 

support sectors engaged   
8 10 4 8 Achieved N/A N/A

Operational M:Dev SP

SO 3.3.6 3 3.7.4 Business Support Assist business to establish 

in the Ugu District

Number of businesses 

assisted
12 12 10 6 Not Achieved

No businesses could be assited 

for th quarter

Continue with the efforts to 

assist in the subsequent year

Operational M:Dev SP

SO 4

SO 4.1 3 3.7.5 KZN

SO 4.1.1 3 3.7.5 Agricultural 

support

Engage and consult 

traditional leaders on 

identification of arable land

Number of leaders 

consulted
N/A N/A 6 6 Achieved N/A N/A

Operational M:Dev Agric

SO 4.1.2 3 3.7.5 Agricultural 

support

Number of hectares of 

fallow fields in Amakhosi 

areas  converted into 

cultivated lands 

Number of hectares 

cultivated 

N/A N/A 45 92 Achieved N/A N/A

200 000.00R                 M:Dev Agric

Support the growth of local emerging farmers and encourage markets for their products

Agriculture: To promote small scale farming in the Ugu District 

Establish a business support desk for big, small and emerging business
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SO 4.1.3 3

3.7.5

Agricultural supportConduct and facilitate 

formal market for farmers
Number of markets 

identified

6 6 2 2 Achieved N/A N/A

Operational

M:Dev Agric

SO 4.1.4 3 3.7.5 Agricultural 

support

Support small growers and 

farmers with inputs for 

production

Number of farmers 

supplied with inputs
N/A N/A 4 8 Achieved N/A N/A

400 000.00R                 M:Dev Agric

SO 4.1.5 3 3.7.5 Agricultural 

support

Support farmers and 

schemes with 

machanisation

Number of farmers 

supported  with 

mechanization

N/A N/A 8 5 Not Achieved

There were not enough farmers 

that could be supported for the 

year

Identify more farmers that 

required assistance

100 000.00R                 M:Dev Agric

SO 4.1.6 3 3.7.5 Agricultural 

support

Provide training on 

commercial production 

Trainings conducted

3 8 4 0 Not Achieved
Expenditure for RASET Grant 

was put on hold by the funder 

Apply for funded government 

trainings and source funding 

for farmers capacitation 

programme 

50 000.00R                   M:Dev Agric

SO 4.1.7 3 3.7.5 Agricultural 

support

Link  farmers with  potential 

markets and other 

government programmes

Linkages made

6 6 4 6 Achieved N/A N/A

Operational M:Dev Agric

SO 4.1.8 3 3.7.5 Agriculture support Prepare and submit 

Business Plans for 

agriculture support

Number of applications N/A N/A

8 9 Achieved N/A N/A

-R                                M:Dev Agric

SO 4.1.9 3 3.7.5 Agri-processing Encourage establishment of 

Agri-Processing plants and 

upskill farmers to 

participate

Number of farmers 

trained
3 8 4 12 Achieved N/A N/A

100 000.00R                 M:Dev/CEO

SO 4.1.10 3 3.7.5 Agri-processing Link upskilled farmers with 

the markets and relevant 

departments for their 

products

Number of farmers 

linked 6 6 6 6 Achieved N/A N/A

50 000.00R                   M:Dev Agric

SO 4.1.11 3 3.7.5 Agri-park Participate in National & 

Provincial meeting and play 

a facilitation role in the 

implementation of Agri-Park 

Attend  DJOC (DAPPOT) 

quarterly meetings 
4 4 4 3 Not Achieved

DRDLR discontinued the sitting 

of DJOC meetings

Participate in FPSU meeting in 

LMs. These are quarterly 

meetings and the Q1 meeting 

didn’t convene. Q2 meeting 

will be attended

-R                                M:Dev Agric

SO 5

SO 5.1 3 3,7,4 USCDA

SO 5.1.1 3 3.7.4 Skills development 

& training - 

Internships

Submit funding application 

for skills development

Number of funding 

application  
2 2 6 2 Not Achieved

Applications are based on 

request, especially, by SETAs. As 

the entities that fund skills 

development. 

As request for applications are 

issued, USCDA will apply. The 

target will be achieved in Q4

Operational M:Dev SP

SO 5.2 3 3,7,4 USCDA

Enterpreneurship Development: To facilitate skills development and training for small business development and entrepreneurship

Facilitate internships in commerce and industry within the Ugu District and promote awareness of USCDA

Promote awareness of USCDA through the local radio stations 
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SO 5.2.1 4 3.7.5 Marketing the 

services of the 

Development 

Agency

Attend quarterly 

programme with the local 

radio stations (UYR and 

RSS)  

Number of quarterly 

programmes of 15 

minutes

8 8 8 8 Achieved N/A N/A Operational IPM

SO 5.2.2 4 3.7.5 Marketing the 

services of the 

Development 

Agency

Place USCDA weekly radio 

adverts to the local radio 

stations (UYR and RSS)

Number of weekly 

adverts 

88 88 88 76 Not Achieved
Service provider appointed a 

month later than planned

Other programees extend to 

the new financial year
56 000.00R                   IPM

SO 6 3

SO 6.1 Identify property development opportunities within the 4 local municipal jurisdictions that comprise the Ugu District USCDA

SO 6.1.1 3 3.7.9 Hinterland 

Property 

Development

Murchisson Mixed Use Finalize the concept and 

present to Projects 

Committee
N/A N/A 31/12/2019 0 Not Achieved 

The two concepts from USCDA 

and the taxi association have 

not been consolidated

Ndwalane Taxi and Business 

Associations have started  

develop a concept document, 

as it is now we need to work 

with them to final the 

documents .

15 000.00R                   M:Dev SP

SO 6.1.2 3 3.7.9 Hinterland 

Property 

Development

Amandawe Precinct Plan - 

Participate in meetings

Number of meetings 

attended
N/A N/A 2 1 Not Achieved Operational

M:Dev SP

SO 6.1.3 3 3.7.9 Operation Phakisa St Michaels beachfront Concept document 

adopted 

N/A N/A 1 0 Not Achieved
Challenges lie with the 

owbership of the property/land

Continue with the efforts to 

discuss with the local 

municipalities

-R                                M:Dev SP

SO 6.1.4 3 3.7.9 Operation Phakisa Shelly Ski-boat revamp Concept document 

adopted 
N/A N/A 1 0 Not Achieved

Challenges lie with the 

owbership of the property/land

Continue with the efforts to 

discuss with the local 

municipalities

-R                                M:Dev SP

SO 6.1.5 3 3.7.9 Operation Phakisa Southbroom beachfrnt 

development

Concept document 

adopted 
N/A N/A 1 0 Not Achieved

Challenges lie with the 

owbership of the property/land

Continue with the efforts to 

discuss with the local 

municipalities

-R                                M:Dev SP

SO 6.1.6 3 3.7.9 Inland Propert 

Development 

Conference Centre - 

Umdoni 

Expression of Interest 

advert

N/A N/A 1 0 Not Achieved
Challenges lie with the 

owbership of the property/land

Continue with the efforts to 

discuss with the local 

municipalities

-R                                M:Dev SP

SO 6.2 USCDA

SO 6.2.1 3 3,7,6 KwaXolo Caves
Completion of construction 

of KwaXolo Caves Walkway
Walkway constructed 1 0 1 0 Not Achieved

The construction of is in 

progress and commenced in 

June 2019

There is progress in the 

project and it is forecast for 

completion in Q1 of the 

2019/20 Fin year

950 000.00R                 
M:Dev 

PD/CEO

Property Development: To forge Public Private Partnerships (PPPs)  to give effect to economic development on State, Ingonyama Trust and land owned by the private sector

Implement property development  opportunities 
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SO 6.2.2 3 3,7,6 John Mason  Park

Conclude development 

agreement with the 

developer 

Consolidated the 

agreement 
1 0 1 0 Not Achieved

Challenges with the ownership 

of the property

Follow up with the Public 

Works for the signing of the 

lease agreement

Operational 
M:Dev 

PD/CEO

SO 6.2.3 3 3,7,6 John Mason  Park

Provide and guide for the 

initiation of professional 

planning/studies

Professional studies 1 0 1 0 Not Achieved
Agreement has not been 

finalised

Make a follow up in the new 

financial year
Operational 

M:Dev 

PD/CEO

SO 6.2.4 3 3,7,6
Hibberdene Mixed 

Use

Conclude the agreement 

with the developer 

Agreement with the 

developer
1 0 1 0 Not Achieved

There have been issues with 

land ownership

Resolve the matters of land 

ownership with RNM
Operational

M:Dev 

PD/CEO

SO 6.2.5 3 3.7.6

Hibberdene Mixed 

Use

Present an implementation 

plan to Board
Date IP presented N/A N/A 1 0 Not Achieved

There have been issues with 

land ownership

Resolve the matters of land 

ownership with RNM
Operational

M:Dev 

PD/CEO

SO 7 UDM

SO 7.1 3 USCT

SO 7.1.1 3 3,7,6 Multi Trails 

Network

Social facilitation for URT Number of sessions for 

social facilitations
4 4 4 3 Not Achieved

Endeavours to get funding have 

not been succesful

Continue with soliciting 

funding for the URT

10 000.00R                   M:Dev SP

SO 7.1.2 3 3.7.6 Multi Trails 

Network

Funding secured for URT R35m

N/A N/A R35m 0 Not Achieved
Endeavours to get funding have 

not been succesful

Continue with soliciting 

funding for the URT

Operational

SO 7.1.3 3 3,7,6 Multi Trails 

Network

Review a joint action plan 

with SCT for URT 

Joint action plan 

1 1 1 0 Not Achieved
Endeavours to get funding have 

not been succesful

Continue with soliciting 

funding for the URT

Operational CEO

SO 7. 1.4 3 3.7.6 Multi Trails 

Network

Implement a joint 

implementation plan

Outputs of the plan

N/A N/A 2 2 Achieved N/A N/A

Operational M:Dev SP

SO 7.1.5 3 3.7.6
Scottburgh beach 

front

Conclude development 

agreement with the 

developer 

Date agreement 

concluded
N/A N/A 31/03/2019 0 Not Achieved 

Land ownership proved to be a 

challenge, as part of it is 

privately ownership.

Proper engagements are yet 

to be organized with private 

owners through the local 

municipality  by Q4

Operational
M:Dev 

PD/CEO

SO 7.1.6 3 3.7.6 Turton Beach Front 

Conclude development 

agreement with the 

developer 

Date agreement 

concluded
N/A N/A 30/06/2019 0 Not Achieved

Challenge with the ownership of 

the land

Discussions with the 

municipality to be pursued
Operational

M:Dev 

PD/CEO

SO 7.2 3 USCDA

SO 7.2.1 3 3.7.5 Fish Farming Link  potential partners 

from  previously 

disadvantage groups with 

Fish Farming Projects 

Progress report from the 

manager
1 0 1 0 Not Achieved

The study hasn’t been 

conducted in the district for fish 

farm projects to be confirmed 

feasible 

Apply and secure funding for 

the study  by FY 2019/20

Operational M: Dev Agric

SO 7.2.2 3 3.7.5 Fish Farming Business Plan for funding 

approved 

Date of approval

N/A N/A 1 None Not Achieved
No funding was sourced to 

develop compile a business plan 

Apply and secure funding  for 

a bankable business plan

-R                                M: Dev Agric

SO 7.2.3 3 3.7.5 Fish Farming Identify markets for fish and 

related products

Number of markets 

identified
N/A N/A 1 0 Not Achieved

No businesses were ready that 

could be linked to markets

Develop a business plan for 

businesses and link with 

markets in Q3 and Q4

Operational M:Dev Agric

SO 7.2.4 3 3.7.5 Fish Farming Appoint Services Provider 

for Fish Farming business 

plan development

Business Pan 

development N/A N/A 1 0 Not Achieved

Financial limitations to appoint 

the servive provider 
Secure funding from 

government departments  by 

FY 2019/20

500 000.00R                 M:Dev Agric

SO 7.2.5 3 3.7.5 Fish Farming Link DAFF aquaculture 

assessed sites with 

Provincial Aqua Related 

Programmes 

Nummber sites linked

N/A N/A 2 0 Not Achieved

The study hasn’t been 

conducted in the district for fish 

farm projects to be confirmed 

feasible 

Apply and secure funding for 

the study 

Operational M:Dev Agric

Marine: To promote economic development within coastal and riverine zones

Implement maritime tourism projects

Establish an experimental terrestrial fish farm (Aquaculture & Aquaponics) within the Ugu District
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SO 8 3 USCDA

SO 8.1 3 3,7,6 Catalytic Project Finalise the application  for 

the Release of Agricultural 

land for Industrial 

Development(Ifafa) 

Final Decision from DoA

1 0 31/12/2018 0 Not Achieved

 The DAFF was given a proof 

that Elysuim farm is not under 

claim, as  per request. In their 

communication, this proof is 

important to make a final 

recommendation on the 

release of agriculture land . A 

follow up will be done during 

Q3 and Q4.  

Operational M:Dev SP

SO 8.2 3 3,7,6 Catalytic Project Initiate the process of Ifafa 

Industrail Park 

establishment

Complete EIA 

1 0 1 0 Not Achieved
The release of agricultural land 

has not been approved

Management will pursue the 

appeal with the Dept of 

Agriculture

300 000.00R                 M:Dev SP

SO 8.3 3 3,7,6 Catalytic Project Initiate the process of Ifafa 

Industrail Park 

establishment

Complete  rezoning for 

Ifafa

N/A N/A

1 0 Not Achieved
The release of agricultural land 

has not been approved

Management will pursue the 

appeal with the Dept of 

Agriculture

300 000.00R                 M:Dev SP

SO 8.4 3 3,7,6 Catalytic Project Update Polar on Ifafa 

Industrial Pak progress (EIA 

and Rezoning )

Update Polar 

4 4 4 0 Not Achieved
The release of agricultural land 

has not been approved

Management will pursue the 

appeal with the Dept of 

Agriculture

Operaional M:Dev SP

SO 8.5 3 3,7,6 Catalytic Project Establishment of Perishable 

Goods Hub within the Ifafa 

Industrial Park 

Engage KZN Province 

regarding the Elysium 

opportunity 
1 0 1 0 Not Achieved

The release of agricultural land 

has not been approved

Management will pursue the 

appeal with the Dept of 

Agriculture

Operational M:Dev SP

SO 8.6 3 3,7,6 Catalytic Project 

Facilitate establishment of 

South  Coast Film Studio at 

Port Shepstone Techno Park 

Establishment of the 

South Coast Film Studio

1 1 1 1 Achieved N/A N/A

Operational 

M:Dev SP

SO 9 3 UDM

SO 9.1 3 3,7,9 Renewable energy To support and assist the 

proposed Bio Fuels intiative 

at Gunn's Drift

Quarterly progress 

reports 4 4 4 4 Achieved N/A N/A

Operational M:Dev SP

SO 10 Black Industrialist

SO 10 3 3.7.9 Forest industries Forestry Industrialization 

Business Plan

Business Plan 

development N/A N/A 1 0 Not Achieved

-R                                CEO

TOTAL BUDGET 3 627 500.00R             

ANNUAL

ACHIEVED 35

NOT ACHIEVED 46

TOTAL 81

% ACHIEVED 43.2%

Renewable Energy: To identify, attract, support or assist renewable energy initiatives within the district

Facilitate catalytic projects within the Ugu District
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14. THE AUDIT REPORT 
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Report of the auditor-general to KwaZulu-Natal Provincial 

Legislature and the council on the Ugu South Coast Development 

Agency SOC Ltd 

Report on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion 

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Ugu South Coast Development Agency 

SOC Ltd set out on pages 38 to 86, which comprise the statement of financial position 

as at 30 June 2019, the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in 

equity and statement of cash flows and comparison of budget and actual income and 

expenditure for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the financial statements, 

including a summary of significant accounting policies.  

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 

financial position of the Ugu South Coast Development Agency SOC Ltd as at 30 June 

2019, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in 

accordance with the South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 

Practice (SA Standards of GRAP),  and the requirements of the Municipal Finance 

Management Act of South Africa, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 2003) (MFMA) and the 

Companies Act of South Africa, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008) (Companies Act). 

Basis for opinion 

3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). 

My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s 

responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of this auditor’s report.  

4. I am independent of the entity in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the 

International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional 

accountants and, parts 1 and 3 of the International Ethics Standards Board for 

Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including 

International Independence Standards) (IESBA codes)  as well as the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA codes.  

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for my opinion. 

Material uncertainty relating to going concern 

6. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

7. I draw attention to note 30 of the financial statements, the entity is dependent on 

receiving grants from the municipalities and challenges have been experienced with 
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regards to delays of the payments of these grants. As stated in note 30 of the financial 

statements, these events and conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that 

may cast significant doubt on the municipal entity’s ability to continue as a going 

concern. 

Emphasis of matters 

8. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these 

matters. 

Irregular expenditure 

9. As disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, the municipal entity incurred irregular 

expenditure of R1,31 million during the financial year due to non-compliance with 

legislation relating to the supply chain management process. 

Restatement of corresponding figures 

10. As disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 30 June 

2018 were restated as a result of errors in the financial statements of the municipal entity 

at, and for the year ended 30 June 2019. 

Other matter 

11. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Unaudited disclosure notes  

12. In terms of section 125(2)(e) of the MFMA the municipal entity is required to disclose 

particulars of non-compliance with the MFMA in the financial statements. This disclosure 

requirement did not form part of the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, I 

do not express an opinion thereon. 

Responsibilities of the accounting authority for the financial statements 

13. The board of directors, which constitutes the accounting authority is responsible for the 

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the SA 

Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the MFMA and for such internal control as 

the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

14. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting authority is responsible for 

assessing the Ugu South Coast Development Agency SOC Ltd’s ability to continue as a 

going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate governance structure either 

intends to liquidate the municipal entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic 

alternative but to do so.  

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

15. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is 
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a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

with the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 

can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, 

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 

on the basis of these financial statements. 

16. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is 

included in the annexure to this auditor’s report. 

Report on the audit of the annual performance report 

Introduction and scope 

17. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) 

and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material 

findings on the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for 

selected objectives presented in the annual performance report. I performed procedures 

to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance. 

18. My procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based on 

the approved performance planning documents of the municipal entity. I have not 

evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the performance indicators included 

in the planning documents. My procedures also did not extend to any disclosures or 

assertions relating to planned performance strategies and information in respect of 

future periods that may be included as part of the reported performance information. 

Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters.  

19. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in 

accordance with the criteria developed from the performance management and reporting 

framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected objectives 

presented in the annual performance report of the municipal entity for the year ended 30 

June 2019: 

Objectives Pages in the annual 

performance report 

Objective 4 - Agriculture: to promote small scale farming in the 

Ugu District 
x – x 

Objective 5 - Manufacturing: to facilitate skill development 

and training for small business development and 

entrepreneurship  

x – x 

Objective 8 - Facilitate catalytic projects within the Ugu District x – x 

 

20. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was 

properly presented and whether performance was consistent with the approved 

performance planning documents. I performed further procedures to determine whether 
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the indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the 

reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, 

accurate and complete. 

21. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported 

performance information for the objectives presented in the table above. 

Other matter 

22. I draw attention to the matter below.  

Achievement of planned targets 

23. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 28 to 36 for information on the 

achievement of planned targets for the year.  

Report on the audit of compliance with legislation 

Introduction and scope 

24. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a 

responsibility to report material findings on the compliance of the municipal entity with 

specific matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to 

gather evidence to express assurance.  

25. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislation are as 

follows:  

Procurement and contract management 

26. Some of the goods and services with a transaction value of below R200 000 were 

procured without obtaining the required price quotations, in contravention of SCM 

regulations 17(a) and (c). Similar non-compliance was reported in the prior year. 

27. Competitive bids were adjudicated by a bid adjudication committee that was not 

composed in accordance with SCM regulation 29(2). 

28. A construction contract was awarded to a contractor that was not registered with the 

Construction Industry Development Board and did not qualify for the contract in 

accordance with section 18(1) of the Construction Industry Development Board Act, 

2000 (Act No.38 of 2000) (CIDB). 

29. Bid documentation for procurement of commodities designated for local content and 

production, did not stipulate the minimum threshold for local production and content as 

required by the 2017 preferential procurement regulation 8(2). 

Expenditure management 

30. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

amounting to R100 159 as disclosed in note 31 to the annual financial statements, in 

contravention of section 95(d) of the MFMA. The majority of the disclosed fruitless and 

wasteful expenditure was caused by late payment for VAT and PAYE returns. 
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31. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure amounting to R1,31 

million as disclosed in note 32 to the annual financial statements, as required by section 

95(d) of the MFMA. The majority of the irregular expenditure was caused by non-

compliance with CIDB and local content requirements. 

32. Money owed by the municipal entity was not always paid within 30 days, as required by 

section 99(2)(b) of the MFMA. 

Other information 

33. The accounting authority is responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the annual report which includes the directors’ 

report, the audit committee’s report and the company secretary’s certificate as required 

by the Companies Act. The other information does not include the financial statements, 

the auditor’s report and those selected objectives presented in the annual performance 

report that have been specifically reported in this auditor’s report.  

34. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance 

information and compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and I do 

not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

35. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in 

doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 

financial statements and the selected objectives presented in the annual performance 

report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 

misstated.  

36. The other information I obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report is the director’s 

report, and the audit committee’s report and the company secretary’s certificate is 

expected to be made available to us after 30 November 2019. 

37. If, based on the work I have performed on the other information that I obtained prior to 

the date of this auditor’s report, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 

other information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard. 

38. When I do receive and read the audit committee’s report and the company secretary’s 
certificate, if I conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, I am required to 
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the other 
information be corrected. If the other information is not corrected, I may have to retract 
this auditor’s report and re-issue an amended report as appropriate. However, if it is 
corrected this will not be necessary.  

Internal control deficiencies 

39. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported 

performance information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my 

objective was not to express any form of assurance on it. The matters reported below 
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are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the findings on 

compliance with legislation included in this report. 

40. The process followed by management was inadequate to monitor compliance with laws 

and regulations affecting the entity. 

 

Pietermaritzburg  

30 November 2019 

 

 

 

Annexure – Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit 

1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and 

maintain professional scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements, and 

the procedures performed on reported performance information for selected objectives 

and on the municipal entity’s compliance with respect to the selected subject matters. 

Financial statements 

2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in 

this auditor’s report, I also:  

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control 

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the municipal entity’s internal 

control 
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• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the board of directors, which 

constitutes the accounting authority 

• conclude on the appropriateness of the board of directors, which constitutes the 

accounting authority’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 

preparation of the financial statements. I also conclude, based on the audit evidence 

obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 

may cast significant doubt on the Ugu South Coast Development Agency SOC Ltd’s 

ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 

I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 

financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify the opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are 

based on the information available to me at the date of this auditor’s report. 

However, future events or conditions may cause a entity to cease continuing as a 

going concern 

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation 

Communication with those charged with governance 

3. I communicate with the accounting authority regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.  

4. I also confirm to the accounting authority that I have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and communicate all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to have a bearing on my independence and, 

where applicable, related safeguards.  
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15. THE AUDIT ACTION PLAN 

UGU SOUTH COAST DEVELOPMENT AGENCY  

AUDIT CORRECTIVE ACTION FOR THE 2018/19 FINANCIAL PERIOD 

No. Finding 

Corrective Action  STATUS 

Required 
Management Action 

Responsible Person 

Start 
date 

Targeted 
Completion 

Date 

Resolved 
(Yes/No/In 
Progress) 

Comments by 
Responsible 

Manager 
Evidence 
required 

Accountable 
Manager 

Accountable 
Official 

ANNEXURE A: MATTERS AFFECTING THE AUDIT REPORT             

1 

Some goods and services with a 
transaction value of below R200 
000 were procured without 
obtaining the required price 
quotations, in contravention of 
SCM Regulations 17(a) and ©.  

Management must 
ensure that all 
legislative 
requirements for 
procurement of 
goods and services 
are adhered to 
before an award is 
made.  

Finance Manager SCM Officer On-going Monthly Yes and In 
Progress 

Perform on-going 
reviews on all 
procurement to 
ensure compliance 
before making an 
appointment/award. 

Bid 
Documents 

Submission to be 
made to the Board 
for processing of 
Irregular Expenditure 

CEO Finance Manager 01-Jan-20 May-20 No Management must 
ensure accurate 
documentation of 
resolutions taken by 
the board 

Board 
Resolution 

2 

Competitive bids were 
adjudicated by a bid 
adjudication committee that 
was not composed in 
accordance with SCM 
Regulation 29(2)   CEO Finance Manager 01-Jan-20 On-going No   

Appointment 
letters to the 
Bid 
Committees 
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3 

A construction contract was 
awarded to a contractor that 
was not registered with the 
Construction Industry 
Development Board and did not 
qualify for the contract in 
accordance with section 18(1) of 
the CIDB Act 38 of 2000 

Management must 
ensure that all 
legislative 
requirements for 
procurement of 
goods and services 
are adhered to 
before an award is 
made.  

Finance Manager SCM Officer On-going Monthly Yes and In 
Progress 

Perform on-going 
reviews on all 
procurement to 
ensure compliance 
before making an 
appointment/award. 

Bid 
Documents 

Submission to be 
made to the Board 
for processing of 
Irregular Expenditure 

CEO Finance Manager 01-Jan-20 May-20 No Management must 
ensure accurate 
documentation of 
resolutions taken by 
the board 

Board 
Resolution 

4 

Bid Documentation for 
procurement of commodities 
designated for local content and 
production, did not stipulate the 
minimum threshold for local 
production and content as 
required by 2017 preferential 
procurement regulation 8(2) 

Management must 
ensure that all 
legislative 
requirements for 
procurement of 
goods and services 
are adhered to 
before an award is 
made.  

Finance Manager SCM Officer On-going Monthly Yes and In 
Progress 

Perform on-going 
reviews on all 
procurement to 
ensure compliance 
before making an 
appointment/award. 

Bid 
Documents 

Submission to be 
made to the Board 
for processing of 
Irregular Expenditure 

CEO Finance Manager 01-Jan-20 May-20 No Management must 
ensure accurate 
documentation of 
resolutions taken by 
the board 

Board 
Resolution 

5 

Reasonable steps were not 
taken to prevent fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure 
amounting to R101 159 in 
contravention of section 95(d) 
of the MFMA.  The majority of 
the disclosed fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure was 

Management must 
ensure that third 
party/statutory 
deductions are paid 
over on time. 

Finance Manager Financial 
Administrator 

01-Jan-20 Monthly Yes and In 
Progress 

Management must 
ensure accurate 
documentation of 
resolutions taken by 
the board 

Board 
Resolution 
approving 
the 2018/19 
Budget 
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caused by late payment for VAT 
and PAYE returns 

Submission to be 
made to the Board 
for processing of 
Fruitless and 
Wasteful Expenditure 

CEO Finance Manager 01-Jan-20 May-20 No Management must 
ensure accurate 
documentation of 
resolutions taken by 
the board 

Board 
Resolution 

6 

Reasonable steps were not 
taken to prevent irregular 
expenditure amounting to R1.31 
million as required by section 
95(d) of the MFMA. The 
majority of the irregular 
expenditure was caused by non-
compliance with CIDB and local 
content requirements 

Management must 
ensure that all 
legislative 
requirements for 
procurement of 
goods and services 
are adhered to 
before an award is 
made.  

Finance Manager SCM Officer On-going Monthly Yes and In 
Progress 

Perform on-going 
reviews on all 
procurement to 
ensure compliance 
before making an 
appointment/award. 

Bid 
Documents 

Submission to be 
made to the Board 
for processing of 
Irregular Expenditure 

CEO Finance Manager 01-Jan-20 May-20 No Management must 
ensure accurate 
documentation of 
resolutions taken by 
the board 

Board 
Resolution 

7 

Money owed by the municipal 
entity was not always paid 
within 30 days as required by 
section 99(2)(b) of the MFMA. 

Management must 
ensure that there is 
cash flow 
management, that 
would enable 
obligations to be met 
as they fall due CEO Finance Manager 01-Jan-20 On-going No 

The receipt of 
allocations from 
Municipalities would 
assist a great deal 
resolving this matter 

Ageing 
Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 


